
Form No. 10-300 g \0-'~'

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES 
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

i-x-XvX-^x-x-x- :•: v^xXxlWx^xrx-xXxv:- '••'/•• -:-:->x-x-:-;- :• .•'.• 'xVXx-x-

SEE INSTRUCTIONS IN HOWTO COMPLETE NATIONAL REGISTER FORMS 
TYPE ALL ENTRIES -- COMPLETE APPLICABLE SECTIONS

I NAME
HISTORIC Central National Bank (preferred name)

AND/OR COMMON
Topeka Bank and Trust

LOCATION
STREET& NUMBER

701-703 Kansas Avenue
—NOT FOR PUBLICATION

CITY. TOWN
Topeka

VICINITY OF

CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT

No. 2, Martha Keys
STATE

Kansas
CODE 20 COUNTY Shawnee CODE 177

CLASSIFICATION

CATEGORY
—DISTRICT 

X-BUILDING(S)

—STRUCTURE 

_SITE

—OBJECT

OWNERSHIP
—PUBLIC 

X_PRIVATE

—BOTH

PUBLIC ACQUISITION
—IN PROCESS

—BEING CONSIDERED

STATUS
X_OCCUPIED

—UNOCCUPIED

—WORK IN PROGRESS

ACCESSIBLE
XYES: RESTRICTED

— YES: UNRESTRICTED

—NO

PRESENT USE
_AGRICULTURE —MUSEUM

X_COMMERCIAL —PARK

—EDUCATIONAL —PRIVATE RESIDENCE

—ENTERTAINMENT —RELIGIOUS

—GOVERNMENT —SCIENTIFIC

—INDUSTRIAL —TRANSPORTATION

—MILITARY —OTHER:

OWNER OF PROPERTY
NAME

Topeka State Bank and Trust Co., John Finden, President
STREET& NUMBER

P. 0. Box 56
CITY. TOWN

Topeka
STATE

VICINITY OF Kansas 66603

LOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Register of Deeds
COURTHOUSE. 
REGISTRY OF DEEDS/ETC

STREET & NUMBER

Shawnee County Courthouse
CITY, TOWN STATE

Topeka Kansas

1 REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS
TITLE

Historic Sites Survey
DATE

June 26, 1974 —FEDERAL XsTATE —COUNTY _LOCAL

DEPOSITORY FOR
SURVEY RECORDS Kansas State Historical Society
CITY. TOWN

Topeka STATE Kansas 66612



DESCRIPTION

CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE

^EXCELLENT —DETERIORATED __UNALTERED X-ORIGINAL SITE

_GOOD _RUINS X_ALTERED _MOVED DATE_______

_FAIR _UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Central National Bank building, now the Topeka Bank and Trust Company 
building, was designed in the Neo-Classical style. It is a two story structure 
with a basement and measures 50 feet along the Kansas avenue facade, 150 feet 
along Seventh street and is 41 feet high. The building was constructed of 
re-inforced concrete and steel and faced with a buff colored Bedford stone. 
The building which faces east and fronts on Kansas avenue is located in the 
banking district of Topeka and is on a traditional site. The portico of the / 
east facade is supported by four Ionic columns and two piers on a granite base. 
The entablature is unorthodox with a decorated frieze; there are rosettes on 
the half module points on the uppermost cyma recta below which are the ovolo, 
dentils, cyma reversa and astragal. Above the cornice is a solid balustrade 
decorated with festoons in relief and a cartouche. A recessed facade stands 
behind this portico. The main entrance which is located on this facade is 
centered between the columns. Above the foor is an entablature embellished with 
a fascia, ovolo, fascia, cyma reversa, and astragal. The entablature is 
supported by consoles and underneath on the architrave are four rosettes. 
Surmounting the entablature is a carved stone eagle. There are plate glass 
windows centered on either side of the door. Above these windows are roundels 
with the symbols of the two original occupying financial institutions. The 
three windows on the second story are aligned with the openings on the first 
floor. Below their sills runs a continuous band of Greek fret moulding.

The north facade on Seventh street has also been finished with the Bed­ 
ford stone. There is a fairly steep grade on this part of the site, allowing 
a light well for part of the basement floor. Two wide Doric pilasters 
indicate the first bay of this facade. A window has been centered in this 
bay and the moulding details are continued from the east facade of the 
building in the balustrade and entablature to the end of this bay. The end 
of this bay is marked by a fluted Roman Doric pilaster which begins a new 
module. There is a series of seven fluted Doric pilasters separating six 
large windows on each floor. The balustrade above the cornice reflects this 
change in the bays with a solid balustrade above the pilaster alternating 
with balusters above the windows. The final bay of this facade is again 
defined by two wide pilasters but contains two windows on each floor. There 
is also an entrance into the basement level in this bay.

The Bedford stone facade continues around the corner to the west facade 
which backs onto an alley. The stone facade stops after several feet and the 
wall is continued with a pale yellow brick. The window lintels and sills 
and an indication of the cornice height are defined with plain, dressed stone. 
There are three windows on the second story, five on the first and four win­ 
dows and an entrance on the basement floor. The south facade is a shared 
wall and has been constructed of brick.
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The interior lobby is trimmed with Travertine, which is also the flooring 
material. The second vestibule is trimmed with Tennessee tavenell marble. 
The stairway on the right in this vestibule leads up to two offices. The 
stairway on the left leads down to the safety deposit vaults in the basement. 
The balustrades of these stairways are of tavenell marble alternated with 
bronze balusters.

The banking room measures 45 feet by nearly 100 feet in depth. The 
ceiling at its highest point is 35 feet high and has a slight vault decorated 
with coffered hexagonals in which are set rosettes of gold and cream. The 
walls of this room are Zenitherm, a special composition material that is 
resistant to heat and cold and sound absorbant. High up on the walls are 
medallions of golden veined St. Genevieve marble. The counters in the middle 
of the room are also made from this marble. The frieze in this room reads, 
"The Bank is the Promoter of all Industry;" "The Bulwark of Agriculture and 
Manufacturing;" "The Distributor of Funds for all Enterprises;" "The Bank 
is the Guardian of the Home;" "Accepts and Executes the Sacred Trusts of Firms 
and Individuals and Encourages Thrift." Lighting comes from three chandeliers 
of wrought iron and bronze. Looking toward the front of the building from 
the banking floor, two pillars of St. Genevieve marble support a small balcony 
that is flanked by candlelights.

Another room is entered from the back of the banking room through pillars 
of St. Genevieve marble which support a balcony that is a duplicate of the one 
over the main entrance to the banking room. In back of the balcony is a large 
clock set in marble with bronze hands and numerals. On the other side of the 
pillars are bronze and glass doors on either side of which is heavy bronze 
filigree work. On the left of this entrance is a stairway to the clerical 
department on a mezzanine floor. This floor looks out over the banking floor 
and has a balustrade of bronze, French grey and light blue, the metal bars of 
the balustrade being set in St. Genevieve marble with alternating bars of 
that stone. Lighting the forepart of the mezzanine floor is a chandelier 
similar to but smaller than those in the main banking room.

The exterior of the building was floodlighted in 1939 with a strip 
of neon tubing above the cornice. Architect W. D. Wight of the Kansas City, 
Missouri, firm of Wight and Wight, supervised the project. The north side 
was lighted with five floodlights mounted below the sidewalk level. The front 
of the building was lighted with four lights mounted high behind the columns.

In 1974-1975 the building underwent renovation and remodeling. The 
exterior was sandblasted and new bronze double-pane windows and doors were 
installed. Metal signs running most of the length of the east and north 
facades were removed. The tellers' cages on the interior were moved from
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the north wall to the south wall. The floor which was originally linoleum 
has been covered in places with carpet. Planters have been placed between 
the columns on the exterior. A bronze colored time and temperature sign 
has been added to the east facade.

9.

Markley, Walt, Builders of Topeka (Topeka, Capper Printing Co., 1934), pp. 323-327

Remembrances in Wood, Brick and Stone (Topeka-Shawnee County Metropolitan 
Planning Commission, 1974), pp. 172, 173.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Central National Bank building was erected in 1926-1927 by the 
Central National Bank and the Central Trust Co.

The Central National Bank f s history can be traced back to 1882 through 
a number of name and ownership changes. The Central Trust Co.was formed in 
1914 by some of the same people who had a controlling interest in the bank. 
The two institutions were always located at one of the corners of the Kansas 
avenue and Seventh street intersection: originally on the northeast corner 
but after 1887 at the southeast corner. In 1926 the land at the southwest 
corner was purchased and an existing building was razed.

Plans for the new banking facility were prepared by the Kansas City, Mo., 
firm of Wight and Wight. J. R. Burrow, Jr., vice-president of both financial 
institutions, announced on February 10, 1926, that the general contract for 
the building had been let to F. M. Spencer and Son of Topeka with a projected 
completion date of December 1, 1926. However, the building was not ready for 
occupancy until mid-April, 1927.

When it was opened, the Central National Bank building was the most 
modern up-to-date banking facility in Topeka. Erected at an estimated cost 
of $250,000, it was regarded as one of the most attractive business buildings 
in the city.

The Central National Bank occupied the building until it merged with the 
National Bank of Topeka to form the First National Bank of Topeka around 
1957. Topeka State Bank moved into the vacated quarters in 1959 after 54 
years at 735 Kansas avenue. In 1974-1975 the building was renovated and 
remodeled. The exterior was cleaned and some rearranging was done on the 
interior. However, the building's classical appearance was retained. The 
name of the present occupant was changed to Topeka Bank and Trust in 1975.

The Central National Bank building was the work of one of the Midwest's 
prominent twentieth century architectural firms, Wight and Wight. The 
building's distinctive appearance has made it a landmark on Topeka f s princi­ 
pal business street. It has also been called the best execution of classical 
design in a Topeka commercial building.
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